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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (it known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Bayfield County Courthouse in Washburn is a two-story, Neo­ 
classical Revival building constructed of local brownstone and topped with 
a domed cupola. Its main entrance is marked by a tetrastyle portico 
with a flight of broad steps leading to the free standing colonnade which 
supports a simple architrave, unadorned frieze, and pediment. The columns 
are unfluted Corinthian.

The main block is divided horizontally into four units. The base­ 
ment continues to the height of the portico, and it is faced with smooth 
stone. A single, thin course of stone separates this from the first 
story which is faced with smooth-faced, rusticated stone with chamfered 
edges separating the courses. The division between first and second 
stories is sharply marked by a projecting course of brownstone. The 
second story is faced with large smooth-finished blocks. The corners 
are emphasized by rusticated quoins, and the windows have slightly- 
projecting sills. This division is terminated by the architrave extending 
from the portico. The final division is a constinuation of the portico f s 
architrave, and it is terminated by a heavy, unadorned coxnice. With the 
exception of th_e central window of the main facade all the windows are 

frectangular and undecorated. The central window is Palladian, and it 
opens onto a small balcony.

The cupola has a colonnaded drum, a semicircular dome, and a tall 
lantern.

The building has been well maintained, and the exterior has changed 
only by the blocking-up of a few windows. The interior has much original 
woodwork and is in excellent condition.
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Bayfield County Courthouse, Washburn

7, Present and Original Physical Appearance.

The interior of the building is largely original. The original 
floors and ceilings remain along with the original stairs and woodwork. 
The only changes to the building since its construction have been 
in the area of normal maintenance, except that in 1973 all the windows 
in the old building were replaced with aluminum-framed windows, storms 
and screens.

Two additions have been made to the rear of the building. The 
first, directly to the rear, was built in the 1930 l s. The second, 
to the rear and side-rear, was built in 1964. The latter addition 
includes the county court room, and the former court room in the origina 
building has been converted to the county board's chambers. To accom­ 
plish this the only changes made were the removal of the Judge's bench 
and jury box. The new additions house various offices in addition to 
the new court. Since the additions were made sensitively to the rear 
and are only half the height of the original building, they are rela­ 
tively unobtrusive and have minor impact. The architectural thrust 
of the original building is forward to the southeast with a prominent 
tetrastyle Corinthian portico. The later additions to the building 
do not interfere with this quality.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Bayfield^County Courthouse at Washburn is the result of a success­ 
ful, though somewhat deceptive campaign to remove the county seat from 
the City of Bay field. The building was designed by the Minneapolis firm 
of Off & Joralemann and constructed by John Halloram, a Washburn con­ 
tractor, at a cost of around $40,000. The building is a fine example of 
the rather uncommon use of Lake Superior brownstone in a Neo-Classical 
Revival structure.

The town of Washburn was founded in 1883 and boomed as a lumber town. 
By 1892 it was considerably larger than the county seat, Bayfield, and a 
number of residents decided to attempt to have the seat moved to Washburn. 
A committee was formed, and H.H. Hayden, an Eau Claire lawyer, was hired 
to engineer the removal. The legality (of the entire operation) under Wis­ 
consin statutes was open to question, and a number of specific actions 
were probably illegal.

When additional signatures were needed on a petition distributed to 
property owners, a plot of land was divided into 25' lots sold for $1.00 
each. When funds ran low a plot of land owned by a number of Washburn 
residents was sold to the town for $3,000, and the money was turned over 
to the county seat committee.

A county-wide election was scheduled to settle the matter, but the 
issue came to a head at a popularity contest held as part of a fair in 
Iron River. There were two leading female contestants. One happened to 
favor Washburn as the county seat while the other favored Bayfield. The 
contest became a symbol, and the Washburn supporters were determined 
that their side would win. To insure success great numbers of Washburnites 
descended upon Iron River and spent considerable sums of money. The Wash- 
burn supporter won the contest, and in the county election the Iron River 
showed their appreciation of Washburn f s money by voting in favor of moving 
the county seat. Washburn won the election by 500 votes.

Immediately after the vote was made official by a gubernatorial 
proclamation a caravan was dispatched from Washburn to Bayfield to 
move the courthouse. The building was occupied by Washburn residents 
until all the records and furnishings were removed, and the caravan 
returned to one of the biggest celebrations in Washburn's history. A 
small wooden structure served as courthouse until the present one was 
constructed.



Manuscript describing removal of county seat from Eayfield by 
Charles M. Sheridan, Washburn, Wi. Manuscript in possession of 
author.
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